
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18, 2013 
CHINCOTEAGUE TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING 

 
Council Members Present:        
John H. Tarr, Mayor        
J. Arthur Leonard, Vice Mayor 
Ellen W. Richardson, Councilwoman 
John N. Jester, Jr., Councilman 
Gene W. Taylor, Councilman  
Tripp Muth, Councilman 
Terry Howard, Councilman 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Tarr called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION 
Councilman Taylor offered the invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Tarr led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND ADOPTION 
Councilwoman Richardson motioned, seconded by Councilman Jester to adopt the agenda as 
presented.  Unanimously approved. 
 
1. Presentation/Discussion – Wastewater Advisory Committee 
Wastewater Advisory Committee Chairman, Mr. Spiro Papadopoulos thanked all involved and 
presented the Draft Report of the Wastewater Advisory Committee.  He stated that wastewater 
management is not a glamorous subject but it is remains one of the Town’s core concerns, and 
added that infrastructure growth is a big challenge because nobody wants to pay for it. 
 
The Draft WAC report to Town Council includes a summary of the research, discussion and 
action taken by the Committee over the last 2 years.  To make a long story short, the Committee 
concluded that:  
 
A proposed regional wastewater treatment plant for Northern Accomack County providing 
service to the Town of Chincoteague is not achievable at this time because: 

 Several small rural communities cannot afford to construct a large state of the art 
wastewater treatment plant, even with private investment in a new Planned Unit 
Development on the mainland 

 Federal grants are not currently available and are unlikely in the near term 
 All property owners would be required to connect in order to pay for regional 

infrastructure  
 This option is politically incompatible with Accomack County’s land use plans 

 



Expansion of existing wastewater treatment systems on Chincoteague Island to meet specific 
needs should be encouraged in the near term: 

 Through the leadership of Mayor Tarr and a civic minded development company, 
Sunset Bay Utilities expanded its service area as a trial project to allow private 
investment in wastewater treatment infrastructure for the downtown Main Street area 

 Operation of several small wastewater treatment facilities to replace areas of failing 
septic drainfields, and to support the Town’s tourism based economy on a voluntary 
basis is the solution that best meets current needs 

 Maddox Boulevard is a commercially zoned corridor that will need a wastewater 
treatment utility system in the near term to support business expansion 

 Improvements to septic drainfield technology and improved maintenance of existing 
individual systems will continue to serve most residential properties through private 
investment 
 

Chairman Papadopoulos concluded by suggesting that action by the Town Council is needed for: 
 Adoption of the recommended strategy will keep the Town in control 
 Positive improvements started by the Sunset Bay Utilities expansion can be 

replicated in other areas of Town 
 Moving toward a public wastewater utility system in the long term will meet the 

needs and expectations of Chincoteague’s next generation of business owners and 
residents 

 
Chairman Papadopoulos felt they have addressed the Committee’s goals and objectives within 
the draft report.  He explained the proposed service area and definitions. He explained the Coast 
Guard’s system also. 
 
Town Manager Ritter stated that the Committee discussed all of the current properties who have 
approved overboard discharge permits and the possibility of the Town applying for this method 
of disposal. 
 
Mr. Kelly Conklin stated that septic is a big issue for restaurant businesses verses the t-shirt 
shops.  He stated that they don’t want to make this mandatory because everyone doesn’t need 
sewage.   He mentioned the associated costs.   
 
There was mention of the Maryland Coastal Bays program and water quality plans.  
 
Council commented on the change in attitude with more people supporting the central sewage 
system idea than in the past. 
 
Chairman Papadopoulos reviewed the matrix and the four categories: Collection System, 
Treatment Facility, Method of Disposal and Financing Options.  He reviewed and explained each 
category. He explained the recommendations and problems with each.  The Committee 
suggested that the Town Council should decide on the three major steps.  They feel the Town 
should hire a public relations’ firm to help promoting the possibility of a treatment plant. He then 
suggested hiring a financial firm to compile the associated costs in this sort of system. He stated 
the most important step is hiring a legal entity for the study of long term upkeep and 



maintenance and meeting with the associated firms and companies regarding permitting, research 
and such. 
 
Chairman Papadopoulos stated that the Committee would like for Council to begin making the 
appropriate small steps toward creating a public wastewater treatment utility system.   
 
Council discussed the discharge options. 
 
Town Manager Ritter asked Council if they would support the Town applying for the permit to 
see if the Town could get it.   
 
Discussion continued regarding discharge solutions. 
 
Mayor Tarr explained that when Mr. Rigby was here conducting the study he proved that by 
putting discharge into Fowling Gut it would clean it up immensely.  However, the public 
relations on this were poor. 
 
Discussion continued. 
 
Chairman Papadopoulos advised that other than the cost, people seem to support the idea of a 
wastewater treatment utility for Chincoteague.  He feels they need to make the decision as to 
which way they want to go and prepare the plans.  
 
Mayor Tarr feels the Committee has done a fantastic job putting this together.   
 
They discussed the U.S. Fish and Wildlife’s system along with the system at NASA.   
 
Mayor Tarr thanked the Committee for their hard work and for attending the workshop. 
 
 
2. Possible Sign Ordinance Revision 

a. Discussion of Planning Commission Recommendations. 
b. Schedule Joint Public Hearing for May 6th, Regular Town Council Meeting 

 
Planning Commission Chairman Ray Rosenberger stated that in response to Council’s request to 
revisit the Sign Ordinance, they reviewed the situations brought to them and considered the 
details to see if there was a unique situation.  They feel it was not a unique situation or a 
problem.  He read excerpts from the Sign Ordinance.  He also stated that Building and Zoning 
Administrator Lewis should be included as he is the one who enforces the codes.  He advised 
that the Planning Commission has not had a chance to review the staff report. 
 
Town Planner Neville stated that they took the Planning Commission’s recommendation back.  
They expressed their concerns of assigning a street number for each building or shed on the lot.  
They didn’t want 5 sheds and 5 signs on a small lot.  He stated that they felt they may want to 
look at that issue more.  He read and reviewed possible problems in the current Code.  He also 
made suggestions as to a solution.   



 
There was discussion regarding “parcel” verses “lot”. 
 
Town Planner Neville referred to the handout making signage suggestions regarding multiple 
buildings on a lot. He advised that the Planning Commission’s concern was larger lots verses 
smaller lots with more buildings and signs.  
 
Councilman Taylor asked for clarification.   
 
There was further discussion. Chairman Rosenberger feels that they need Building and Zoning 
Administrator Lewis’ opinion. 
 
Mr. Papadopoulos added that they need to look at the safety point of view with 911 addresses.  
He added that they don’t want to complicate things further.  
 
There were comments and further discussion. 
 
Town Planner Neville feels that the Town shouldn’t be responsible for solving a business 
owner’s issue with sharing the permitted sign area.  He added that it’s a design issue not a sign 
issue. 
 
They discussed the signage with multiple businesses listed on the sign. 
 
Mr. Papadopoulos stated that with the proper input from staff and Council it would benefit 
everyone.   
 
Council agreed to go along with the Planning Commission’s recommendation: to Section 
7.13.1.7 Freestanding Signs which would delete the word ‘lot’ in the first line and replace it with 
‘freestanding building’.   
 
Councilman Jester motioned, seconded by Councilman Howard to schedule a Joint Public 
Hearing with the Planning Commission regarding the Sign Ordinance revisions recommended by 
the Planning Commission for May 6th 2013.  Unanimously approved 
 
3. Council Member Comments 
There were no further comments. 
 
Adjourn 
Vice Mayor Leonard motioned, seconded by Councilman Taylor to adjourn.  Unanimously 
approved. 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Mayor        Town Manager 
 
 


